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QUEENSLAND FLOODS COMMISSION OF INQUIRY
Commissions of Inquiry Act 1950

THIRD AFFIDAVIT

i, GRAHAM 1aN DALE o/- NN - i the State of

Queensland, General Manager, say on oath:

1.

| am the General Manager, Personal Insurance Claims of RACQ Insurance Limited (RACQ

Insurance).

This affidavit is provided on behalf of RACQ Insurance in response to a notice dated 9
September 2011 served on me by Justice C E Holmes, Commissioner of Inquiry, pursuant
to section 5(1){d) of the Commissions of Inquiry Act 1850 (QId) to provide information in
respect of matters listed in correspondence from Ms Jane Moynihan dated 8 September
2011 {Third Letter of Inquiry).

Copies of the Third Letter of Inquiry and Commissioner Justice C E Holmes' letter of
0 September 2011 are Exhibits 1 and 2 to this affidavit.

RESPONSE TO THIRD LETTER OF INQUIRY

4. The matters set out below are not, or are not necessarily, matters of which | have direct
knowledge other than by having regard to the records of RACQ Insurance (which | have
done in order to provide this affidavit). | have, in answering the questions in the Third Letter
of Inquiry done so based on my experience, my own knowledge where possible and relying
on material maintained by RACQ Insurance or provided by others.

5. Also | have, with the assistance of others, assembled information and material to respond
to the questions the subject of the Third Letter. | have, however, not been ahie to
personally review all of the material which has been assembled for that purpose or
exhibited to this affidavit.

6. For ease of reference | have set out in this affidavit the headings and questions from the
Third Letter of Inquiry and provided my response to them below.
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BACKGROUND

7. Exhibit 3 to this affidavit contains a chronology of dealings with and as concern Mr Byron in
respect of his claim. That exhibit identifies the records relied on to compile the information

in the exhibit.

8. However, a summary of those dealings is set out below:

(a)

(b)
(c)

(f)

(@)

(h)

(i)

()

0

Signed

Mr Byron's home at _Esk was damaged by flood waters on 10
January 2011.

Mr Byron made a claim to RACQ Insurance, by telephone, on 17 January 2011.

On 18 January 2011 RACQ Insurance appointed MY1 Freemans Ltd (MY1

Freemans) to inspect Mr Byron’s property.

MY Freemans contacted Mr Byron on 24 January 2011. This was noted by them as

a “triage contact”.

MY Freemans left messages with Mr Bvron on 28 January 2011 and 1 February
2011. Mr Byron returned these calls on 1 February and inspection of his property

was carried out on 1 February 2011.

MY! Freemans prepared a report dated 4 February 2011 and given the nature of the
damage to Mr Byron’s home, arranged for Stream Build Assist (Stream) to carry out

an inspection of the property and to prepare a scope of repair works

On 8 February, 2 February and again on 18 February 2011, Stream made
unsuccessful attempts to contact Mr Byron to carry out an inspection. On one
occasion Mr Byron’s phone was out of range but on the other two occasions

messages were left on Mr Byron's phone for him to call.

Mr Byron called Stream back on 18 February 2011 and an inspection was arranged

and carried out by Siream on 21 February 2011,

On 24 February RACQ Insurance contacted Mr Byron and gave him an update. Mr
Byron was infermed, amongst other things, that RACQ Insurance had received a
report from MY| Freemans and was now awaiting a hydrology report for his region.

On 9 March 2011, RACQ Insurance received Water Technology's repert for Esk
{dated 3 March 2011) with covering legal advice.

| made the decision which accepted that the cause of damage to Mr Byron's property
was flash flood on or about 14 March 2011 and on or ahout that date referred Mr

Byron’s claim to the dedicated response team to cairy out its final internal checks.

On 16 March 2011 RACQ Insurance informed MY Freemans that Mr Byron's claim
had been accepted and Mr Byron was advised of this decision on 18 March 2011
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(m)

(n)

{(r)
(9)

(r)

(s)

()

(u)

v)

(w)

)

(z)

Signed:

Stream had made tender requests to various builders for the repair of Mr Byron's
property on 10 March 2011. On various dates Stream chased up the potential
tenders. All had besn received by 21 March 2011.

On 23 March 2011 Stream had completed its report to MY Freemans, including the
scope of works for the repairs required to Mr Byron's property (the “first scope”).

By 28 March 2011, Stream had sent a copy of the first scope to MY| Freemans.
On 28 March 2011, MYI Freemans sent a copy of the first scope to RACQ insurance.
On 13 April 2011 Stream emailed a copy of the first scope to Mr Byron which asked

for Mr Byron's acceptance of it for work to proceed.

On 13 April 2011, Mr Byron telephoned Stream to seek an update of the progress of
his claim.

Later on 13 April 2011, Mr Byron telephoned Stream and told them he accepted the
first scope except for the foyer area, which had been omitied. The Stream records
note that there was alsc an issue raised as to the scope of work not including a fence
{and this may have been raised first by the builder).

Cn 14 April, My Byron contacted RACQ Insurance and said he wanted a cash
settiement. He had received the first scope and said that the first scope omitted foyer
and fence work. The RACQ Customer Service Officer told Mr Byron he would pass
this information on to an appropriate person and they would get back to him.

in a telephone call between RACQ Insurance and Mr Byron on 15 April 2011 which
was initiated by RACQ Insurance to discuss Mr Byron's request for a cash
settlement, Mr Byron was informed that a revised scope of works was being
prepared and that RACQ Insurance would make further contact with him once it
received the revised scope.

On 15 April 2011, Siream carried out a further inspection of Mr Byron’s property in
response to his comment that the foyer and fence had been omitted from the first
scope

Between that date and 4 May 2011 Stream were seeking (and clarifying) further
tenders which took account of the additional scope.

On 18 April 2011 Mr Byron contacted RACQ Insurance and sought an update on his
request for a cash payout and some information about his policy.

Cn 19 April, a member of RACQ Insurance’s claims staff called Mr Byron back and

informed him that the revised scope had not been received.

On 27 April 2011, RACQ Insurance contacted both Stream and MY| Freemans to

enquire when the revisad scope of works would be provided.
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(aa) On 28 April 2011, RACQ Insurance received a payment recommendation report from
Stream for a partial settiement of Mr Byron's claim in the amount of $52,258.85
which was stated to be for the cost of repairs set out in the first scope but not
including some other items. The report also stated that an additional amount of
$16,000 needed to be allowed by RACQ Insurance in its reserve for the items not
covered in the first scope. On receipt of this report, enguiries were made with

Stream to foliow up on the scopes for the additional repairs required.

(bb) On 4 May, Stream prepared a further report on the cost of repairs to Mr Byron's
property (“further report”). That report clarified a number of issues with regard {o the
cost of repairs and identified the costs of the additional works comprising the fence,
laundry and foyer areas. The amounts in that report were based on tenders received
for the work required with the exception of the shared side fencing which was based
on allowances estimated by the building consultant. The date that the report was
received by RACQ Insurance is not recorded but on 10 May 2011 RACQ Insurance,
based on this report and the previous reporfs determined that Mr Byron’s claim
should be setfled for $63,670.42.

{cc) By emall on 9 May 2011, Mr Byron made a complaint to MY! Freemans, copied to
Stream, about the handling of his ctaim. Mr Byron requested that the complaint be

sent to RACQ Insurance.

{d¢d) On 10 May 2011, RACQ Insurance received a copy of Mr Byron's complaint. A
member of RACQ Insurance’s claims staff telephoned Mr Byron and informed him of
the amount RACQ Insurance had approved as the cash setttement of his claim and
provided a basic breakdown of that figure. RACQ Insurance also wrote to Mr Byron
that day and confirmed that his claim was to be settled for a cash payment of $63,
670.42. The sum was paid into Mr Byran’s account (the details of which he gave in
on the phone} shortly after that on or around 12 May 2011. Mr Byron had already
paid his policy excess of $300 to Stream and this was refunded to him by Stream on
or around 17 May (in order that only one excess was applied).

(ee} Byemail on 11 May 2011, Mr Byron wrote to RACQ Insurance and stated that he
would have to frust RACQ Insurance’s judgment that the amount of the settlement
was suifficient fo repair his home,

{ffy  On 24 May, Mr Bvron wrote to RACQ Insurance seeking a response to his email of
11 May 2011.

{gg) On 27 May 2011 RACQ Insurance sent an email advising Mr Byron that the scope of
works which was represented by the figure which had been paid to him did include
the additional works he had previously raised with RACQ Insurance. The response,
(I accept unhelpfully) did not provide Mr Byron with the policy document he had

sought.
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(hh} Mr Byron responded to RACQ Insurance’s email of 27 May 2011 on 30 May
expressing his dissatisfaction. The Team Leader who until that point had been
dealing with Mr Byron had returned to the business as usual team by 30 May 2011.
His replacement, upon reading Mr Byren's email of 30 May, investigated the matter
{including by requesting further information from Stream} and attempted to contact
Mr Byron on 30 May. She couid not get through to Mr Byron and so a message was

left by her on his phone to call her.

(iiy  After obtaining a report from Stream to clarify the final payment figures, the Team
Leader called Mr Byron back the next day and Mr Byron was assured his request
was being dealt with. To the best of my knowledge a copy of Mr Byron’s certificate of
insurance (but not the Product Disclosure Statement) was sent to him on 31 May. In
the same telephone conversation Mr Byron was given a detailed breakdown of the
settlement and he did not say he was dissatisfied with those amounts or that he

required further information in reiation to them.
(i)  On 31 May 2011, RACQ Insurance provided a further lefter confirming his claim had

been cash settled. it is likely that he was also sent a copy of the Stream further report
of 4 May 2011 at this time.

9. In response to the specific questions in the Third Letter of Inquiry, | respond as follows.
1. in respect of point 1 above:
1.1. Does the account of the telephone conversation outlined in point 1 accord

with RACQ Insurance’s records?

1.2 If not, please provide RACQ Insurance’s account of the conversation in
which Mr Byron made his claim. In particular, what advice did RACQ
Insurance give Mr Byron on that occasion?

1.3. What records exist of the conversation? Please provide copies of those
records, including any audio recordings.

10.  The account provided by Mr Byron as outlined in paragraph 1 of the Third Letter of inquiry

generally accords with RACQ Insurance’s records.

11.  In particular, RACQ Insurance's records show that:

(a) Mr Byron made a claim on his policy by telephone at 1.11pm on 17 January 2011.
{b) When making his claim, Mr Byron was informed by RACQ Insurance’s telephone
operator:

(i) that his claim would be referred to RACQ Insurance’s loss adjusting team
who would get in touch with Mr Byron as soon as they could to arrange an

appointment to lock at the damage to his home;
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(i)  that he could remove any damaged items from the property; and

(i) to take as many photos as he could.

12. The records that RACQ Insurance has in relation to the telephone conversation are:

(a) a copy of the electrenic recording on a disk which is exhibited to this affidavit as
Exhibit 25;
(b) a transcript of the electronic recording of the conversation which is exhibited to

this affidavit as Exhibit 24;

{c) and an entry in the ClaimCenter (a record of notes entered onto RACQ
Insurance’s ClaimCenter computer system by the member of the Claims division
who underfook the relevant activity)(Exhibit 4).

2, In respect of point 2 above:

2.1 Please provide a copy of RACQ Insurance’s instructions to MYl Freemans
Lid and Stream Group concerning Mr Byron’s claim.

13. Paragraphs 7 to 10 of my First Affidavit sworn 1 September 2011 cutline RACQ Insurance’s
arrangements with loss adjusters MY| Freemans and Stream during the Queensiand flood
evenfs. As siated in that affidavit, after the floods associated with ex-Cyclone Tasha
occurred in December 2010, | made the decision that MY! Freemans would take the loss
adjusting lead on claims which occurred outside of South East Queensland. When the
January floods occurred, | decided that MY{ Freemans would take the loss adjusting lead
from claims arising from these evenis as well. This role entailed, amongst other things, MYl
Freemans inspecting affected properties and co-ordinating the involvement of Stream if

required.

14.  RACAQ Insurance instructed MY| Freemans in respect of Mr Byron's claim on 18 January
2011. A copy of RACQ Insurance’s instructions to MY| Freemans in refation to Mr Byron’s
claim is Exhibit 7 to this affidavit.

15.  As stated above, the engagement of Stream in respect of Mr Byron's property was co-
ordinated by MY!| Freemans. This was consistent with the process RACQ Insurance had
agreed upon with MY Freemans and Stream which was that MYl Freemans would request
Stream to inspect the property if they considered it necessary to have a trade qualified
specialist assess the building compenent of a ciaim. On a number of occasions RACQ

Insurance followed up progress directly with Stream.

Signed: Taken by:




16.

i7.

18,

19,

20.

Signed:

In respect of point 3 above:

3.1. Please advise the extent to which RACQ Insurance kept Mr Byron informed
of the progress of his claim, including the dates on which RACQ Insurance
contacted Mr Byron, the mode of communication each time RACQ Insurance
contacted him and the details of the information given to Mr Byron on each
occasion RACQ Insurance contacted him.

3.2 What records exist of each communication with Mr Byron (whether made by
RACQ Insurance or Mr Byron) about his claim? Please provide copies of
those records, including any audio recordings.

3.3. Did RACQ Insurance give Mr Byron confact defails for the person managing
his claim? If so, was Mr Byron told that he could contact that person
directly?

The dates on which RACQ Insurance contacted Mr Byron, the mode of each
communication, details of the information given to Mr Byron on each occaslon and the
records that RACQ Insurance has in relation to each communication, including transcripts
of telephone recordings, and ClaimCenter records (along with other relevant events in the
chronology) are set out in the schedule which is Exhibit 3 to this affidavit. | am not able to
personally verify whether the ClaimCenter communications occurred, or whether they

occurred as recorded, as | was not invelved in the communications.

Also, Stream and MY1 Freemans each have an online system which allows their
representatives to record actions taken in respect of RACQ Insurance's policyholder’s

claims.

A print out from the MY! Freemans system showing the actions taken by MY! Freemans in
respect of Mr Byron’s claim is attached as Exhibit 5 to this affidavit. A print out from the
Stream system showing the actions taken by Stream in respect of Mr Byron's claim is
attached as Exhibit 6 to this affidavit.

[ have included in the chronology contained in Exhibit 3 the communications between
Stream and MYI Freemans with Mr Byron referred to in the print outs from Stream and MY]
Freemans’ online systems. Again, | am not able to personally verify whether these
communications occurred, or whether they occurred as recorded, as | was not invelved in

the communications.

During the initial telephone call in which he lodged his claim Mr Byron was told that if he
had any questions with regard to his claims he could ring seven days a week on RACQ
Insurance’s Teleclaims number. When a customer rings that number the Teleclaims staff
are able to immediately identify the allocated case manager and put the call through to that
person if that person is available or, if the case manager is not available, another person

within the dedicated response team who can provide appropriate assistance.,

Taken by:
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22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

Signhed:

In respect of point 4 above

4.1. Does the account of Mr Byron’s requests accord with RACQ Insurance’s
records? Please provide copies of records in this regard.

4.2. If Mr Byron did make the requests, did RACQ Insurance provide a copy of
his policy to him? If not, why not?

The account provided by Mr Byron as outlined in paragraph 4 of the Third Letter of Inquiry
does not accerd fully with RACQ Insurance’s records.

RACQ Insurance has reviewed its records concerning any requests made by Mr Byron for

his policy.

RACQ Insurance's records indicate that on 24 May 2011 Mr Byron sent an email to RACQ
insurance requesting a copy of his original policy. A copy of Mr Byron's email dated 24 May
2011 is Exhibit 20 to this affidavit.

in response to Mr Byron's request of 24 May 2011 Mario De Leo, a Team Leader from
RACQ Insurance's Household Claims division, informed Mr Byron by email on 27 May 2011
that he was not able to provide Mr Byron with policy documentation from his department
due to privacy reasons. Mr De Leo further informed Mr Byron that if he contacted 13 19 05
or attended his nearest branch they would be happy to print out or send Mr Byron a copy of
the policy. A copy of the email from Mario De Leo to Mr Byron dated 27 May 2011 is Exhibit
22 to this affidavit.

Team members in the Claims division are not able fo issue policy documents, that function
being dealt with by a separate department. The usual practice would be to either attempt to
connect the caller to the telephone business centre (for the issue of a copy of the policy),
ask the customer fo visit a branch to obtain a copy of the policy or ask the customer
themselves ring the telephone business centre to do so. | am not aware of a privacy
reascen which would have prevented Mr De Leo contacting that department to provide the
policy to Mr Byron. In the circumstances (which include that this was a call put through to
the Dedicated Response Team dealing with inundation claims arising from the Queensiand
Floods) | would have expected Mr De Leo, upon receiving Mr Byron's request, {o have
contacted the telephone business centre and arranged for them fo send the palicy to Mr
Byron. Had he done s0, the policy would have been sent to Mr Byron.

On 30 May 2011 Mr Byron sent an email o Mr De Leo expressing dissatisfaction with Mr
De Leo's email of 27 May 2011. In Mr Byron's email of 30 May 2011 he made reference to
his request of 27 May 2011 for a copy of his policy. A copy of the email from Mr Byron to Mr
De Leo dated 30 May 2011 is Exhibit 22 to this affidavit.
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27.

28,

29.

30.

Signed:

By 30 May, Mr De Leo had refurned to his role in the business as usual section of the
Claims department and no longer acted as a Team Leader within the dedicated response
team. That position was taken up by Ms Lois Attard. In view of the dissatisfaction
expressed by Mr Byron in his email of 30 May 2011, Ms Attard undertook a review of Mr
Byron’s concerns and attempted to make contact with him the same day. On the afternoon
of 30 May 2011 Ms Attard made a telephone call to Mr Byron and, when that call was not
answered, left a message for Mr Byron informing him that she was looking into the issues
he had raised and would contact him the next business day to discuss.

On 31 May 2011, Ms Attard made a further telephone call to Mr Byron. During this call she
informed Mr Byron, amongst other things, that she had contacted the underwriting division
who would be sending out his certificate of insurance in respect of the cover period 16 July
2010 to 16 July 2011 for his records and alse that a renewal notice would be sent to him for

the period of cover from 16 July 2011.

| have reviewed RACQ Insurances recerds in this regard. Exhibit 29 is a copy of a printout
| have had produced from the Cogen system - which is used by RACQ/RACQ Insurance to
manage client and policy information. Line D of this printout records a transaction on 31

May, {noted as PNO6 3). This shows that a Certificate of Insurance for the period from 16

July 2010 to 16 July 2011 was generated from the system on the 31% of May. | assume that
this was posted to Mr Byron on or about that day. | am not aware of the Product Disclosure
Statement having been sent to Mr Byron. The records that RACQ Insurance has in relation

to the telephone conversations referred to above are:

{8) a copy of the electronic recording of the message left by Ms Aftard on 30 May 2011
which is exhibited to this affidavit as Exhibit 25.

{b)  atranscript of the electronic recording of the message of 30 May 2011 which is
exhibited to this affidavit as Exhibit 24.

(c)  a copy of the electronic recording of the conversation on 31 May 2011 which is
exhibitad to this affidavit as Exhibit 25.

{d) a transcript of the electronic recording of the conversation on 31 May 2011 which is
exhibited to this affidavit as Exhibit 24.

Exhibit 4 to this affidavit is a print out of activities from ClaimCenter relating to Mr Byron.
Pages 4 and 5 of this print out make reference {o the calls made by Ms Attard to Mr Byron
on 30 May 2011 and 31 May 2011.

In respect of point 5 above:
5.1. When was Mr Byron’s claim accepted?

5.2 When and how was the decision first communicated to Mr Byron.
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31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Signed:

| determined that the cause of damage to Mr Byron’s property was flash flood on or about
14 March 2011. Flash floed, as defined in the Household insurance Policy, is covered by
the policy. My decision on causation was based upon Water Technology's regional report
for the Lower Lockyer Valley and Esk which | had received shortly before making my
decision. | took legal advice as to the issue of causation arising out of that report. Having
made this decision, | then referred the claim to RACQ Insurance’s dedicated response
team to carry out its final internal checks {as referred to in paragraph 31 of my First Affidavit
and as is to be dealt with also in my proposed Second Affidavit) before confirming the final

decision to accept the claim.

Mr Byron was informed that his claim was accepted by Mr Bob Gates of MY] Freemans on
18 March 2011. Exhibit 14 is a copy of Mr Gates’ notes which record this.

In respect of point 6 above:

6.1. Please confirm whether the information contained in Stream Group's Scope
of Works dated 13 April 2011 in respect of Mr Byron’s property, as outlined
above, is correct. If it is not correct, please provide details of the
assessment process.

At the time of Stream Group’s scope of works dated 23 March 2011 {(which was provided fo
Mr Byron by Stream on 13 April 2011) | assume that Steam considered the information in

that scope to be correct. Stream’s said scope of works is exhibit 10.

However, Mr Byron subsequently raised queries about this scope of works with Stream and
Stream undertook investigations to respond to Mr Byron’s concerns. These investigations
included attending a further inspection of Mr Byron's property to clarify the scope of works.

The inaccuracies in the original scope have been identified above.

The additional works which are included subsequently to the first scope of works are
identified in the Stream report dated 4 May 2011 which is Exhibit 13 to this affidavit.

The print out from Stream'’s online system (Exhibit 8) details the assessment process
followed by Stream to determine the scope of works o be conducted in retation to Mr

Byron's property.

In respect of point 7 above:

7.1. Does the account of the telephone conversation outlined in point 6 accord
with RACQ Insurance’s records.

7.2, If not, please provide RACQ Insurance’s account of the conversation in
which Mr Byron expresses his desire for RACQ Insurance to make a payout
on his claim.
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7.3. What records exist of the conversation? Please provide copies of those
records, including any audio recordings.

37. | have assumed that the reference fo “point 6" in paragraph 7.1 was intended to be a

reference to “point 7" (and a conversation of 19 April 2011).

38. The account provided by Mr Byron as outlined in paragraph 7 of the Third Letter of inquiry

does not accord fully with RACQ Insurance’s records.

39. RACQ insurance’s records show that the conversation between Mr Byron and RACQ

Insurance’s Customer Service Officer was to the following effect:

(a) RACQ Insurance made a call to Mr Byron.

(b) RACQ Insurance noted that Mr Byron had previously asked for a cash settlement
and that he had a local builder prepared to perform works.

(c)  Mr Byron was informed that RACQ Insurance was awaiting further information from
Stream concerning the scope of repairs to be undertaken to his property. The
Customer Service Officer advised that they just wanted to make sure the figure was
correct,

{(d)  Mr Byron was informed that when the updated figure from Stream was received they
would he in touch with Mr Byron further to discuss cash settlement. The Customer

Service Officer indicated they expected to receive something from Stream shortly.

(e}  Mr Byron stated that he had an elderly mother who could not get into her house (she
was renting) so he was frying to get his house ready for her to come and live.

) RACQ insurance’s Customer Service Officer informed Mr Byron that they had no
intention of holding him up and that they would try and get things rectified as soon as

they could.

40. The records that RACQ Insurance has in relation to the telephone conversation are:

(a) A copy of the electronic recording on a disk which is exhibited to this affidavit as
Exhibit 25.

{b} A transcript of the electrenic recording of the conversation which is exhibited to this
affidavit as Exhibit 24.

{c)  Notes which were made of the ielephone conversation by RACQ Insurance's

telephone operator, which are contained ClaimCenter notes which are exhibited to
this affidavit as Exhibit 4.

Sighed:;
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42,

43.

Signed:

In respect of point 8 above:

8.1.  Does the account of the telephone conversation outlined in point 7 accord
with RACQ Insurance’s records?

8.2, If not, please provide RACQ Insurance’s account of the conversation.

8.3. What records exist of the conversation? Please provide copies of those
records including any audio recordings.

| have assumed that the reference to “point 7" in paragraph 8.1 was intended to be a
reference to “point 8” (and a conversation on 10 May 2011).

The account provided by Mr Byron as outlined in paragraph 8 of the Third Letter of Inquiry
does not accord fuily with RACQ Insurance’s records. Mr Byron was advised of the
components of the total sum to be paid to him. Itis correct that he was not provided with
the tenders. He did not ask for them in that cali (he asked for them in his email of 24 May
2011). In any event RACQ Insurance did not have them, as is discussed below. No explicit
invitation was made fo him to discuss the figures but nor was there any suggestion he could
not do so. The call was ended after Mr Byron gave account details to RACQ Insurance for
the payment of the sum to his account and there was nothing apparently further which he
wished fo discuss. At no stage during this conversation did Mr Byron give any indication

that he had an objections or concerns in relation to the amounts.

RACQ Insurance’s records show that the conversation between Mr Byron and RACQ
Insurance’s Customer Services Officer, which occurred at approximately 12.45pm on 10

May 2011, was to the following effect:

(@) A Customer Service Officer from RACQ Insurance made a calf to Mr Byron on 10
May 2011 and advised him that she had received the information necessary to

provide him with a cash settlement of his claim.

{b)  The Customer Service Officer then asked Mr Byron if he had a pen so he could write
down the amounts she had on file. The Customer Service Officer then stated that the

amounts of the cash setflement would be: |
(i)  $5,309.43 for fencing; |
(iy  $49,559.71 for building repairs; and
(i)  $9,101.28 for jaundry

less his excess of $300.

{c} Mr Byron stated that he had already paid his excess and the Customer Service
Officer said Stream would be contacted so that this excess could be reimbursed to

him.
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45,

46.

47.

e

49,

Signed:

o

(d)  The Customer Service Officer asked Mr Byron to confirm that he wanted to be cash
settled and that he did not want to proceed to have Stream arrange the repairs. Mr
Byron confirmed that he did.

{e) The Customer Service Officer asked whether Mr Byron would like the funds

deposited into his bank account and Mr Byron provided his account details,

(f) ~ The Customer Service Officer informed Mr Byron that the payment would be made
right away and that the funds should be received within 3 to 4 working days. Mr
Byron indicated that that was fine.

The records that RACQ Insurance has in relation to the telephone conversation are:

(a} A copy of the electronic recording on a disk which is exhibited to this affidavit as
Exhibit 25.

(b) A transcript of the electronic recording of the conversation which is exhibited to this
affidavit as Exhibit 24.

{c)  Notes which were made of the telephone conversation by RACQ Insurance’s
Customer Service Officer, which are contained in on-line notes in respect of Mr

Byron's claim (refer Exhibit 4).
In respect of point 9 above:

9.1, What information did RACQ Insurance rely upon in determining the amount
to be paid to Mr Byron in respect of his claim? Was this information
provided to Mr Byron? If nof, why was it not provided?

8.2, Did Mir Byron agree io this amourni?

RACQ Insurance relied upen information provided by Stream in determining the amount to
be paid to Mr Byron in respect of his claim.

Stream provided an initial scope of works to RACQ Insurance on 23 March 2011 (Exhibit
10).

A print out Stream’s online system which records actions taken by Stream in respect of Mr
Byron’s claim (refer exhibit 6} indicates at page 9 that Mr Byron was provided with the initial
scope of works in an email from Stream to Mr Byron on 13 April 2011.

An additional scope of works was prepared on 4 May 2011 {Exhibit 13) which amended the
initial scope of works to include additional items not previously included. These items
included tiling to the front entry and warks in the laundry. The additional scope of works

also included an amended amount for fencing.

Information concerning the amounts (greater than the sum for the initial scope of works)

was provided to Mr Byron when he was informed about the settlement of his claim in a

13




telephone call with RACQ Insurance on 10 May 2011 as set out above (Refer Exhibits 24
and 25). The total amount to be paid (which takes inte account the additional items added
to the initial scope of works) and its calculation were outlined in a letter from RACQ
Insurance to Mr Byron on 10 May 2011 (Exhibit 15).

50. The amounts were also explained to Mr Byron during a subsequent telephone call from
RACQ Insurance on 31 May 2011 (refer Exhibits 24 and 25).

51.  Afurther letter was sent to Mr Byron following this conversation and dated that same day
(Exhibit 23). The letter referred to a settlement figure of $62,298.84 and this did not wholly
reflect the conversation and explanation given to Mr Byron as reflected in the ClaimCenter
system notes (Exhibit 4). Although the letter does not document it, | have spoken to Ms
Attard and her recollection is that the updated scope of works was sent to Mr Byron along
with this letter. | have no way (other than from my discussion with Ms Attard) of confirming

that {o have been done.
10. In respect of point 10 above:

10.1. Did RACQ Insurance notify Mr Byron about its internal dispute resolution
process?

10.2.  What steps were taken by RACQ Insurance to address Mr Byron’s concerns
regarding the determination of the payout figure?

10.3. Are copies of quotes available? IF not, why not, and by what means does
RACQ Insurance assess quotes for the purposes of determining claims
payments if they are not available?

10.4. What steps were taken by RACQ insurance, following Mr Byron’'s request for
an internal review of his claim?

52.  RACQ Insurance nofifisd Mr Byron about its internal review process in its letter to Mr Byron
dated 10 May 2011 {exhibit 15), which stated, relevantly:

*If you feel that the seftlement of your claim was not complete or accurate, you can

request a review of your claim by contacting us.

In accordance with this requirement, please find enclosed a copy of our customer
information sheet, which outlines our complaint handling process. This entire process

is at no cost fo you."

53. RACAQ Insurance’s Customer Information Sheet, which was included with the letter sent to

Mr Byron, states, relevantly, in part:

“Please refer your complaint to us by writing to RACQ Insurance — customer dispute

resofution department PO Box 3004 Logan City, Queensiand 4114 or by telephoning

Signed: Taken by




54,

55.
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58,

59,

60.

Signed:

13 72 02. Your complaint will then be referred fo the appropriate staff by our
complaint manager. If you are not satisfied that your complaint is resolved, we can
escalate your complaint to the next stage of the free and impartial review process in

our Internal Disputes Resolution (IDR} process.”

The letter sent to Mr Byron (including RACQ Insurance’s Customer information Sheet)
dated 10 May 2011 is exhibited as Exhibit 15 to this affidavit.

After Mr Byron was informed about the payment of his claim on 10 May 2011, MY!
Freemans forwarded Mr De Leo an email which had been sent to them by Mr Byron earlier
that day. The email from MY| Freemans to Mr De Leo is Exhibit 17 to this affidavit. This
email from Mr Byron raised some concerns about the assessment conducted in relation to

his property.

| note that Mr De Leo responded to MY1 Freemans in relation to this email, advising that a
resolution had been reached with Mr Byron. This email is Exhibit 18 to this affidavit. | have
discussed this with Mr De Leo who has confirmed that he believed that the cash settlement
which had been agreed with Mr Byron resclved the concerns and hence his response to

MYl Freemans’ email.

Mr Byron’s concerns regarding the determination of his payout figure were raised in an
email he sent to RACQ Insurance on 11 May 2011 which is exhibited as Exhibit 19 to this
affidavit. In this email Mr Byron noted that certain items appeared to have been omitted
from the initial scope of works he had received and that he assumed his ultimate payout

figure included ameounts for these repairs.

Regrettably, RACQ Insurance did not provide a response fo this email. However, upon
receiving Mr Byron’s follow up email of 24 May 2011 (referred to above) Mr De Leo sent a
response to Mr Byron on 27 May 2011 apologising for the previous delay and confirming
that the payout figure was based on Stream’s scope of works and included all required

additional works necessary to repair the damage to his home.

Mr Byron's email response sent on 30 May 2011 indicated that he remained dissatisfied. As
set out above, upon receiving Mr Byron's email of 30 May 2011 the matter was reviewed by
the Team Leader Ms Attard. The ClaimCenter notes from Ms Attard (refer exhibit 4) set out

the further steps that were taken to address Mr Byron's concemns.

There are no copies of builder prepared quotes available. Quotations are not prepared by
RACQ Insurance, Stream or MY| Freemans. Stream prepares a scope of works and then
puts this out to tender electronically. Potential builders then submit a tender {the price they
are prepared to perform the work as per the scope of works) to Stream “on line". Builders

utilise the Stream system to complete tenders on line, thus ensuring that all builders

Taken by




61.

62.

63.

64.

71.

65,

provide tenders on the same approved scope allowing for competitive repair costs. The
successful tender then represents the price that RACQ Insurance can have the work
completed for and therefore forms the basis of any cash settlement at the request of an

Insured.

Itis possible to obtain from Siream a summary of Mainz's (the recommended tenderer)
tender amounts from their system records though this is not done in handling claims and

was not done in the handling of Mr Byron's claim.

Mr Byron requested an internal review of his claim in his email of 24 May 2011 (Exhibit 20).
Following receipt of Mr Byron's emall dated 30 May 2011 following up on this issue Mr

Byron’s claim was reviewed by Ms Attard as set out above.

As part of Ms Attard’s review she requested further information from Stream and this was
provided in a report on 31 May 2011 (Exhibit 30). Ms Attard then had a telephone
discussion with Mr Byron on 31 May 2011 during which she addressed the concerns raised
by Mr Byron. Ms Attard’s CtaimCenter notes from the conversation (set out in exhibit 4 and
above) indicate that Ms Attard believed Mr Byron was satisfied with the resolution that had
been reached. Given this was the case (namely that her review had led to a resolution, it
was thought, of the complaint), the matter was not escalated further within the Internal

Dispute Resolution (IDR) process.

If Ms Aftard had identified any areas requiring further investigation, or considered that there
were any outstanding matters with which Mr Byron remained unsatisfied Mr Byron's claim
would have been escalated to the next stage of the IDR Process. | have reviewed the
records of the telephone conversation between Ms Attard and Mr Byron of 31 May and can
understand from these records that Ms Attard considered her review had addressed Mr

Byron's concerns.
Please provide:
11.1. A copy of Mr Byron's contract of insurance which applied in January 2011.

11.2.  Copies of all written correspondence passing between RACQ Insurance to
Mr Byron about his claim (claim number HH01270895),

A copy of Mr Byron's contract of insurance which applied in January 2011 (comprising the
Product Disclosure Statement and certificate of insurance) is at Exhibits 26 and 27.

SWORN by GRAHAM IAN DALE on: /4 <rzrrer 8 2&//
at Grarsgone in the presence of;

Depone

Barrister/Solicitor/Justice of-the Peage/
Gommissioner forDeclarations
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RACQ Insurange Lid

50 000 704 152

2649 Logan Rd, Eight Mile Plains, QLD 4113
PO Box 3004, Lagan City, QLD 4114
Telephone 137 202 Facsimile (07) 3021 2750

10 May 2011

Mr Raymond Byron

ESK QLD 4312

Dear Mr Byron,

Household Insurance
Policy Number:
Ciaim Number:;

We are pleased ta advise you that we are ready to seftle your claim.

We have now completed hydrological and other investigations relating to your claim. It has been
determined that the damage at your property has been caused by flash flooding / stormwater
run-off,

We refer to your Household Insurance Policy Product Disclosure Statement(s) which state in
part:

Your home

The most we will pay for your home claims

Flash flood and We will pay up to 50% of your home

stormwater run-off sum insured or $25,000, whichever is
higher.

Your contents

The most we will pay for your contents claims

Flash flood and We will pay up fo 50% of your contents

stormwater run-off sum insured or $25,000, whichever is
higher, but not exceeding your contents
sum insured.

Based on this infermation, your settlement has been calculated as follows;

Building Repairs $49,559.71
Laundry Repairs $ 9,101.28
Fences % 5,309.43
Less policy excess $ 30000
Total $63,670.42

Payment as indicated above will be forwarded to you shortly and once accepted represents full
and final settlement of your claim. As agreed, payment will be made by EFT.

CAT L13 2111
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If you feel that the settiement of your claim was not complete or accurate, you can request a
review of your claim by contacting us.

RACQ Insurance subscribes to the General Insurance Code of Practice. If you have a ¢laim
which is caused by a catastrophic event and we finalise your claim within 1 month of the date of
loss or damage, the General Insurance Code of Practice requires that we advise you of our
complaints handling procedures when we finalise your claim.

In accordance with this requirement, pfease find enclosed a copy of our Customer Information
Shaat, which outlines our complaint handling process. This entire process is at no cost to you.

If you have any queries please do not hesistate to contact me on 137 202.

Sincerely,

Rani
Customer Service Officar

CAT L13 2111
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RACQ- insurance

RCOLETI 0%/0%¢)

CUSTONMER INFORMATION SHEET

HOW TO MAKE A COMPLAINT OR ENQUIRY

RACQ insurance is a member of a free and independent dispute resalution service, known as The
Financial Ombudsman Service Limited.

The Financial Ombudsman Service will not accept a dispute unless you have first tried to resolve your
concern with us.

Please refer your complaint to us by writing to RACQ Insurance — Customer Dispute Resolution
Department, PO BOX 3004, Logan City, Qld 4114, or by telephoning {07) 3361 2141 or on 137202 outside
normal business hours. Your compiaint will be referred to the relevant Department Manager who will review
the matter and respond in fifteen business days of our receiving notice of the complaint. When you write or
call, please provide a telephone number at which you maybe contacted.

If your complaint is not resolved to your satisfaction:

You may request the matter be referred to the RACQ Insurance Internal Disputes Resolution Committee
where the matter will be treated as a dispute. The Committee is made up of Senior Managers with the
appropriate powers to deal with the dispute. Your dispute will b considered and you will be notified of the
committee's decision within fifteen business days of our receiving notice of the dispute. There is no cost for
the above process.

If your dispute remains unresolved to your satisfaction:
You can contact The Financial Ombudsman Service Limited. Just write to The Financial Ombudsman
Service Limited, GPO BOX 3, Melbourne Vic 3001 or telephona1300 780 808 (local call cost for consumers
outside the Melbourne metropolitan area).

The Financial Ombudsman Service Limited assists in resolving disputes between consumers and
participating companies.

If you would like a leaflet describing the service provided please telephone The Financial Ombudsman
Service Limited and it will be posted to you. Their website address is www.fos.org.au

RACQ Insurance Limited ARN 50009 704 (52
W Motoring o lnsurance o Travel W' Fnonce
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Time:

Date:

Place of
interview:

Parties present:

Transcript of interview with Raymond
John B

1.11pm

17 January 2011

Claim lodgement calf

nadine [ N rAca

Raymond John Byron {RJB)

Key: [LH] = unintelligible
[lA] = inaudible
= interrupted spseech, or speech peters out

N: Weicome o Claim Services; Nadine speaking, may ! start with your policy, claim or rego number please?

RJB: I haven't got any policy details. They have been washed away. The rago number of my car which may help
i

N: Okay, you're wanting to lodge a claim for your house or your car?

For bolh aclually, aty, bul I't Lalk 1o you aboul it

N Ckay when was the accident or incident? We'll siari off with the house.

RJB: Yep, it was a flocding on Monday the 10™,

N: kay, I'll just pull that up. { need o confirm your name please?

RJB Raymond John Byron

N Okay, your postal address and date of birth there please Raymond?

RJB -sk .and -

N: Okay, I've got your policy. Okay, 'm just going to pull this up, won't be too much longer.

RJB; Yous're right

N Okay so you'll, okay | know where that is I'm not that dumb, Okay, now how high did the waler go inside the
house Russell?

RJB Oh about four feel or so.

N: Oh okay. What we'll do is we'll pop a claim through now...during this time...it takes gbeut 1010 15 minutes.
During this time, I'lf ask you a series of questions related to what's happened and then i be able (o give
you & phone numbar and let you know what happens next. Il slait off by reading a couple of standard
declarations and | will need a “yes/na” answer to these please.

RJB: Yep

M Do you declare that the details that you are about to provide me with are true, correct and hot
misrepresented in any way?

RJB Yes.

N: Please be aware 1hat your claim may be rejected or declined if it discoverad that any of the details are

untrue, incotrect of misraprasented and have you or anyone on the policy been convicted of any criminal
offences in the last five years?
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RJB

RJB:

RJB

RJB:

RJB

RJB:

R.)B
N

RJB:

RJB

RJB:

RJB

RJB:

No.

Okay, Now do you live in this house?

Yes | do, yes

Do you know who you've gol your contents insured with?

| haven't got any. | was always going o renew it with you people bul | haven't got tc . | moved in there
about 12 months ago.

Olkay. Just go here, now you've got your house has been inundated. 've put here that the water went up lo
approximatety four feet deep. How's the house doing?

Waeil, we've emptiad it out now but everything’s gone. There's a whele, everything that was in it., i just
gone to mud and slush.

Okay, now was the house undergoing any renovations when this has swept through?
No, no

Okay, are you registered as a business premises at the home at all?

No.

Okay. Now do you have a pen and paper handy and I'll give you & claim number.

| do, yep

Okay your claim number is double H for Harry,

Double H for Harry yep

Qkay you've got a basic excess of $300 which will be applicable upon acceptance of & claim.

Yep

What happens now is we refer this onto our loss adjusting team and they will be in touch with you as soon
as they can to arrange an appoiniment — day and time o come oul and have a lock at the damage to your

home um, they'll start organising what they need lo from that point on Russell. What is the best number for
us to contact you on 1o do this?

'va only got the one — IR
umh

Okey dokey so that's all done. They'll be in touch with you as soon as they can. | honestly don't know when
that will be um, but they will touch base when obviously they can and they'll get things moving forward from
there. Now did you say that you needed to lodge a claim for the vehicle as well?

Wall, the vehicle, like while we were trying o save siull in the house, the vehicles we got them oul but there
was waler went up you knew aboul three feet on the vehicles and two ware with other insurance
companies. | think they are being wrillen off but ming was a Landrover which makes it a bit higher but a lot
of elecirical alarms have come up since

Yep

iNow whether 1hat you know creeps into the insurance claims | don't know, I've gol the car with you people.

Olkay, 'm just going to pop through here and we're looking at the Discovery 20037
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RJB

RJB:

RJB

RJB:

RJB

RJB:

[ =
[
jns)

Z

RJB:

RJB
N:

RJEB:

RJB

RJB:

N
RJB

RJB;

RJB

Yes, that's it.
Okay. Now whal I'm going to do is pop a ¢laim through for this one. i takes a Htlle bit tess time.
Yep

Just involves me — once again asking stacks of questions and then we'll be able ta give you a claim
number.

Yep

Now I'll reconfirm, you were driving at the time that the waters come up?
Yep.

F'll pul some notes in here was that at home or?

Yep, vep.

Okay. And this was what do you know approximately what time?

Um | forget now, | think it was about half past two or three o'clock thereabouts. A lot happened in a shoit
time.

Oh, Fbet it did! Okay, now was there any signage al all saying thal or warnings that you've disregarded.
No, no it was in my driveway
Ckay from flocding home, Is it still going?

Yes, it's still going. It's just that these alarms have come up which you know | don’'t whether its whether it's
just an electrical fault with the system or not.

Okay. Look that's probably what it is but we'll get some notes in here In relation to that. Now what am ]
going o do with the assessing sorry aboul this. They have very specific ways we're going 1o assess cars
and | just need fo check which way we’re going with these kind. Setthe, is the vehicle registered as a
husiness vehicle at ati?

No. Nah.

Excelient. Do do do do do do do... driver of all vehicle dah dah flood driveable...okay what I'm going lo do
is just let our assessors know that this exists and the car's stili safe for you to drive. You believe iis safe iis
just letting off fittle flashy lights?

I {hink so yes. That's all you can go on. it still goes and does everything ils supposad 10 do but ifs wet and
that yeah.

Okay what about the carpet inside it?

Yeah, no it did getl wet

It did get wel — rip it oA,

Ckay

Before it rusis cut the car | mean, it's going o reaily mankey and really unheaithy really fasi
Yep

Okay now whereabouls are you at the moment? You're at the house or 7

No, I'm with, we can't live in the house so | am al- in Esk.

“ Esk. Okay and_alrighty now I'm letting the assessors know lhal this is where
you are what's happened basically. They will be In touch with you to organise a day and time to get the
assessment done.

Yep

l.et me see if [ can get this .. save all ihat. Sorry about this.
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RJB.

RJB

RJB:

RJB:

RJB:

RJB:

RJB;

RJB:

RJB:

R.JB;

RJB:

RJB:

RJB:

RJB:

4

You're righl. You people must be pretly busy | guess

Oh, it has been absolutely horrendous, but by the same 1oken, we're all well for the most part, most of us
are safe and dry and

That's the important thing
We're okay. So, um, look I've got your claim number for the vehicle Raymond is _
Yep

Okay, upon acceptance of the dlaim, basic excess of $500 will be applicable um pretty much you're
currenily on a rating one, due to this claim your rating will not be affected and the claim has been accepted
well, sorry, its being held without prejudice at this point in time.

Yep

This is purely because you're driving through the flood water; the claims officers and assessors will be in
conlact with you to discuss this as things progress, but um assessing is going to be in contact with you
when they get a chance.

Yes

Just to go through what's happening there — arrange an assessment and do what we need to in relation to
the vehicle. If you are able 1o get a quote for the damages and the repairs that may make it & lol {ast as
things obviously repairers reopen everything like that

Yep

But they'lt go through all that with you. If you have any questions with regards to either of your claims at any
time, we're here seven days on 1372 07

13 72 07 yep

And I'm going to cross referance them so they match up to each other and we know who's who and
where's what.

Okay. Well okay now do if | took this to a dealer and said give me a quote to fis it
Umhm
That would be a heler way for vou to go would i1?

Yeah, well look as much informalion as possible so when the guys czll you up, if you say look I've gol a
quole

Yep

Um, and they'fl say get them to send it through or give it to us whatevet, they'll he able 1o go forward from
there and get things moving. It's just bul it's not something you need to get straight away because when 1o
do contact you they will probably say look, we can see you in a weeks’ time or iwo weeks' lime or three

days’ time and it gives you that little bit of ime, but literally and in the Esk | would expect a shortage of
repairers that are actually functioning at this point in time.

| lknow.

So, if you go past one and they're open, and they're available to do a quote
Yep

*ossibly get one.

That would be good. Alrighl we're here now and if we can work together and makes it easier on everybody
deesn't it?

Yeah. Look as much you know if you can information things starled before everything proceeds, it does
makes things easier and in relation to your home, if there's anything able to be salvaged, salvage it but
anything that’s not, you don’t want anything rotiing or decomposing in your home.

Yep
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So um take lots of pholos and ¥ip it out. We are telling paople if there's gyprock in your house is swelling
and its sodden and mushy, pull it down up to the what, take pholos, pull it down up to the water level and
get it, give your frame a chance to dry out there

Okay

Give yourseif the best start to go on with. Ckay?

Alrighl. Thank you. You've gol an unenviable job there.

Ch, look as much as my jobs been honid lately with just its just an unending listening of yuck, | don't have
1o fook at it. | don't have to deal with it. I'm going home o a nice warm dry house which is the one thing |
can, no matler how bad it is here, you've got it so much worse,

Yeah, we'll we haven't — | mean we've got a mess but there are people that have suffered the lot and you
lknow yeah. It's hard.

Yes il is — il is, no matter which way you're coming at it from, it's now easy but we do wish you ithe best
Russell aghh Raymond and we'll ba in touch with everything as everything goes forward.

Thand you very much.
Not a problem al all. Thanks for calling.
Okay thanks. Bye

Bye bye.

[Ui] = unintelligible
[1A] = inaudible LCB10096553 40645032
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Time:

Date:

Place of
interview:

Transcript of interview belween Teresa
O’Brien and Ray Byron

3.04pm

24 February 2011

Rang to advise awailing hydrology report

Parties present: [N

Key:
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Ray Byron (RB)

[Ul} = unintelligible
[IA] = inaudible

= interrupted speech, or speach peters out

Helio

Ch hi, is thal Raymond Byron?

Speaking.

Oh hi, this is -from RACQ Insurance, how are you going?

'm good. How are you going?

Good, good. Sorry, did you have to run to the phone?

No, I've been breaking up in flood rubbish to he honest,

Siill, itis a never ending job for a white.

Ljust, | keap thinking when the hell is this going lo slop.

Fknow, every time you think it is going to be fing il rains again.

it does, you lock .. any ime you look around there is something else {o do.
Yes, | just wanied {o give you an update on your claim as such.

Yep.

Um, { can see that we have actually got and reviewed the initial report from Freemans, the loss assessors.
Yep.

OK, The part 2 is we are waiting for more information regarding the hydrology, um, which is probably a term
you have heard bandied around a bit. Um but basically we need the hydrology information to determine the
type of fiood that you experienced.

Ol
Yeah, if sounds funny deesn't it.
Waell yeah, go on

Yaah, so basically bacause it determines whether you are covered for flash floods or flood which is not
covered undar your insurance.

Yep, OK.

So that is the biggest thing, chviously. So we are watting for that information to come back and 1 am not
sure when it wiill be, hopefully not too much longer.

OK, so it boils down to the fact that you are not covering us for flood but you are for flash flood, is that
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right?

For flash. That is correc, yes, yeah, and that is why we need to get that experi determination of what type
of flocd it is.

if you had been here on the day you would have had no hesitalion in making a judgment.
Absolutely, | know. Itis a fine line sometimes isn’l il

Well, when you can see it coming three foot down the road from the main street you think weli that is not a
flood that is something else.

Yeah, yeah, amazing. It looked amazing from where | sat but luckily | was forunate not to be involved in
that, so

Yeah, no, | mean, yeah, we have got a massive ..we experienced scmething but there is a lot of people got
worse off.

Yeah, absolutely, absolutely. 1 have seen the aftermath, | have been out there helping people clean up
houses ..

Yeah, yeah
.. that got to their roof. That was terrible.
Itis not fun.

No, no, not fun at all. Look | don’t want to hold you up from cleaning up, so I'll give you a ring back once |
have got some more information there, but that is where we are al ai the moment.

OK, all right.

But if you have any more queries or you are a bit worried because you haven't heard from us, just give us a
ring back and we will be able to give vou the latesl information if we have got any more for you.

OK.

OK then,

Thanlks very much.
OK, thank you. Bye.
Bye.

LCB10CO6653 4064989v1
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Time:
Date:

Piace of
interview:

Parties present:

Transcript of interview with Ray Byron

9.40am

14 April 2011

Call from insured re: scope of works.

Key:
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-

RB

Ray Byron (RB)
RACQ Officer 2 (RACQ2)

{U} = unintelligible
[IA] = inaudible

= interrupied speech, or speech peters oul

Claim services you are speaking with - Can | start with your claim or your policy number please,

My claim number is_

Do you have an lMV or HH number at all?

No | do not, no, | got that number from strearmn.
OK, 50 you do have a household claim with us?
Yas | do.

OK. Unforunately | cannot do a search on stream reference numbers so | will just have to do a search on
your name. What is your firsl name?

Ray Byron,
What was your surname?

Byron. B-Y-R-O-N,

And just your address and dats of birth please.
ate of birtn is [ -
Thanl you. | will give you your ciaim number just for future reference._

Mow, so what can i do for you foday?

Can you tell me where everything is up to. | have beeun lalking to stream and things are .. they are lrying o
sort of get things going but there are a few discrepancies and so forth and i, | was wondering whether there
is any way | just get a payout and use my own builder who is ready lo ge?

OIK. What | need to do is just call through to the claims department that is dealing with your claim and see if
we can get the claims officer on the phone 1o have a chat with you. Is it OKif | pop you on hold while | call
through?

That would be good thank you.
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Won't be fong at all.

Thank vou.

II's Ray that | have gotl. He wants to discuss what is happening with the claim. Apparently he has been in
conlact with MY Freemans and stream and he is jusl confused. { think he wants to request a cash
settlernent.

Qlk cool.

1will put him through.

Yeah mate.

Thank you, bye.

Cheers.
LCB10096653 4064957v2
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Transcript of interview with
and Ray

Time: 9.41am

Date: 14 April 2011

Place of Call from insured re: scope of works {cont},
interview:

Parties present:

Ray {Ray)
Key: [U1] = unintelligible
[lA] = inaudible

= interrupted speech, or speach peters out

Ray that I've got, he wants to discuss what has happened with the claim and how he has been in contact
wilth MY Freemans Insuring and he is just confused...] think he wants to request a cash settlemenit so...

Ok cool.

I'll pped higm thraugh.

Yeah mats.

Okay thank you bys.

Cheers...Good morning, Ray it's-in househotd claims, how are you?
I'm good mate, how are you going?

Yaah it's a bit muddy at the moment...one lool in front of the other.

Yeah il's like that everywhere. ) reaise avarvone's got a fair bit on their plate so we just have to try and
muddle lhrough it the best.

- Yeah ne that's cool.,.Umim...your ¢laim is with the technical claims section and | am just about 10 put you
straight through 1o them...if they are all on the phone or something you'li come back to me and I'll jusl
basically formulate a message with anything you need an update on and we'll get it through to ther. Just

bear with me.

Ray: Thank you {lape pauses).

Household c{aims.peaking.
— now are you?

Hey mate, how are you doing?

Yeah I'm surviving. You are not technical so...

No...

That's okay, I'll iry once more and then do the message thing,
Mo troubtes mate.

Cheers

See you (tape pauses)

Welcome to household claims this is -
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Hey.
i am having no luck trying fc get anything through to technical ctaims this moming...

Yeah...

So I'li go back and take a message. ..

And 't hang up...
Thank lovey.
Bye.

Cheers (tape pauses).
You there Ray?
Ray: Yep.
- Yeah sorry mate | just can't get you through to technical ¢claims they're all on phone cafls.
Ray: Okay.
- | will hasically, like | said, umm...have a chat and get everyihing you need ciarified and send to them in an

email and you should get a call back from that section in about 48 hours | would say...could be less, couid
be a litde bit more...

Ray: Well...I'll tell you what it's about.

Ray: tJmm...the umm.,.Stream has been,..lhey’ve been handling this. I've spoken 1o Freemans in the last few
days, they advised me to takk to Stream, | talked to Stream...umm.. .they have gotten 1o the point where
lhey have sent me a umm...whal do you call il...code of works or something...

A scaope of works?

Ray: Yep scope of works, that's it, which they sent me yesterday. | had a fook at it umm. ..there was one aboul
80 metres of fence was missing off the quote and the front foyer of the house and the end result of that is
that in belween Stream and the main developer who was supposed 1o be looking at the guote for the job it
is sort of backwards and forwards. Now, what | have...| have my own builder ready to go. Now what | was
wondering, is there an easy way out of this to get a paycut and let me do the job?

Just notating this down here, hang on a sec...

Ray: Yep (tape pauses)

Okay. What i've got down here and will be putting in the emall is that Stream and Freemans have been in
contact with you. You received a scope of works yesterday. 80 metres of fence was missing and works 1o
the foyer of the house...

Ray: Yep.

- Ummm...you kave your cwn builder ready to go, can you gel a cash setilement {o get the work done
yourself...

Ray: Yep.

And basically | have pui down there has been confusion belween the loss adjusior and their contractor and
{ think you said it was Main Developments?

Ray: Yeah, that's the...it's not their blue, it's 1o do with the Stream quote but Main Developments are the ones
looking at the guote but they can't finalise ihe quote until they get the full scope.

Yaah okay...okay so...umm...don'l...have...full.. .scape...of works. But Main Cevelopments are the people
that the loss adjustors have been referring to in terms of the contractors?

Ray: As of yesterday they contacted me...really what it boils down te is | say lock | want a choice here if
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they...I'm just camped on a sefiee and cooking on the BBQ, and the rest of the bloody house is empty, it
really just got washed out completely.

Yep.

And | want to get things going If | can. | said look if someone is going 1o take this job on i want some sott of
a guaraniee that they’re nol going to...they're geing to start fairly quickly and not build a little bit then go
away and do another job and come back again, you know what | mean?

Yeah.

And so...apparently the Stream lady rang them to find oui just what the score was...they still won't give a
commitment as to what's thvolved. ..so then you have these other confusing things and | thought well
maybe there is a different way out of this, maybe | can get a payout and you know...take a litlle bit tess
monay or something and | can get my bloke onto it straight away.

Okay. Alright, 'm pretty confident I've got all of that and Tike | said | will summarise all of that in an email...
Yep.

And send it 1o technical claims to get back to you about it and [ will atso put all that information on the claim
file, so thal it's there permanemly.

Alright.

Okay?

Ahh..if you could just get me...make a point that | would like answar fairly quickly so thal | can...
Yegzh, | hear you. Umm...number for you -

That's it

Okay dene deal. I'll get that off for you.

Good on you.

Okay take care mate.

Righio bye.

Cheers
LCB10096653 406491 8vE
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Transcript of interview with Ray Bryon

1.54pm

15 April 2011

Discussion re cash settlement and scope of works

Maric De Leo (ML)
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Ray Bryon {RB)
Craig from Mains (Craig}

fUI] = unintelligible
[1A} = inaudible

= interrupted speech, or speech peters out

Ray speaking
G'day, Ray, it's Mario from RACQ Insurance. How you going today?
Good mate, how you going?

Yeah, noi toc bad. Ray, I've just had a call from Stream regarding the repalrer turning up today to, 10
commence the works.

Yep, yep.

Yeah and you're not, you'd prefer io have a cash settlerent than, than have the works commenced? Is that
1ight?

Look, what, what happened is thal lhere was a discrepanay in the scope of warks and | got the, the
inference that there was going 1o need (o be a re-assessment of the whols thing.

Right.

And |, |, t thought well rather than Ihal, because if there was a payoui available, we'd go that road which I, |,
| someone was going to 1ing me back about that today.

Right. If, if there was like a difference in the scope, like | believe just or my quick discussion then with
Steam that the bloke that was coming out today was also going io take some futther measurements ...

Yep.

To sorl of get an idea around what those, what that difference was.

Yap.

I'm not too sure- was he turning up to do, to commence the whale work or was he just going out 1o that?

No, he was, he's, he's here to do, he's here now actually, he's jusl here o contirm the job, have a lock at it
himself and make any variations that need to be mads.

Oh, okay. Alright, What'll in the space now ‘ces, ‘cos, | mean I'm happy to accommodate the, the
cash settlement job provided that you know we've, all parlies are salisfied that the scope is
correct.

Yes.

Additionally, m not sure if they've otdered any materials from the poini when you signed the scops, the
acceptance of the scope on the 13™ § think It was they, they said.
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That was yesterday, yeah.
Yeah. Oh was it yesterday?
Yep.

Okay. Weil | don't think then that wouid have actually got to the point where they've ordered any materials
yet ..

Would you, .. you haven ordered, I'll ask them, you ordered any materials?
Yeabh, sure.
Nuh. Neh,

Okay. Well, that's that's fine. What we'll do is well, I'll wait for the scope to come in and once the, the you
know the scope in iis enfirety has been received ...

Yep
We'll give you ancther call and decide where we're going to go with this, you know ...
Yep.

Whether the cash settlement will be the preferable option or if you're salisfied with the scope we can go
through with the, you know, the company that they have ..

No, that's fine, yeah.

What f, what | will say Raymond, can you go up ic, il you have the work done by us it’s, it's a liletime
guarantes se if there's any issuss ...

Yep.

Regarding he repairs all you've got to do is call up with your claim number and we can re-assess and make
sure that if there's any faully workmanship elc then thal's our issue.

Yep.

So, 'm not saying. you know, you can't have the cashi selllement or whatever but I'm just sorl of giving
ot 2 clear idea as o you know the strength of our ..

N

Yeah, yeah, no, | do, | appreciate that and | do realise it yeah.
Yeah. Alright what we'll do is awail that scope {o comein ...
Yep.

And once it's come in, we'l give you a call and we'll discuss the next course of action.
Alright. Scunds gooa.

Alright, thanks Raymond.

I'li, I'll put you, put you orto Craig i vou like?

Yeah.

And you can talk to him. Okay.

Okay, no woriies,

Hello, Craig from Mains.

G'day, Craig, how are you mate?

Yeah, good.

That's goed.
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Who am | speaking to?

Matio from RAGCQ Insurange.

Aw, how you going Maria?

Yeah, good. i just got off the phene from Pam from Straam ...
Yep.

Advising me a bit of, & bit of what's going on and It appears as though there's a bit of a disagreement
regarding scme of the scope which ...

Yeah, it's just, the, the, it looks like it's just the front door and the front patic.
Yep.

And one side fence s0 ...

Yeah.

When Stream toid me about it | said Look I've got to go out to Toowoomba anyway so 'l go and see, 1l go
past the joh. We knew thai the guy was, you know, like he'd been, he's sort of living in the shed.

Yep.

So we sort of said okay and i've, I've told him that if we jusi, we gol approval to do the job alihough we
haven't ordered any materials but { said if they don't cash settle your house then we'll come in and start it
next week.

Yep.

And, and gat it going and probably you know strip it out and air it and then we've the guys after Easter
straight into it to ...

Yep.

To get it up and finished so ...

What, what | said to Raymond is that you know once we get that amended scope back in and all, all you
lknow, parties are happy with what's included in the scope, | mean we can enterlain a cash settlement
however Pve really suggosied to him that you know we've got a lifetime guarantec with the worke so if
there’s any issues about any workmanship etc.

Yeah, that's what | said to him.

Yeah, likke, we, we, all he has to do is give us a call and we can have it looked into sc |, |, | lef} the ball in his
court to have a think about ..

Yeah.

But we, we will call him once you've got your scope into Stream ...
Yep.

And then they’ll be able to give us a cail ...

Okay.

And we'll go from there.

Afright, sounds good.

Alright, thanks, thank for your time, Craig.

Okay, see ya, bye.

Bye.

LCB10096652 406501 1v1
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[UI] = unintelligible
[IA] = inaudible

= interrupted speech, or speech peters out

Walcome to Claims Services. You're speaking 1o DL. Can | start with your policy or claim number?
My claim number is I

Thank-you and who am 1 speaking to?

Ray Bryon.

Thanks, Ray. Can | have your address and date of birth?

O Bl

Thandeyou and how can 1 help?

Can you, first of all, while you're getting alf these details, have you got my policy number there?
sure. The potiey nurnber i< [ T N

HBmmm, mmm.

And how much is it insured for?

Your home?

Yeah.

Alright, let me just have a look. Got a building of $237,000.

Okay. | though! it was 200 and something but | wasn't sure. 've got no documents leit.
Oh.

Okay. Now, an Friday, | was taiking {o someone from the Claims Denl in, in and they rang me back again
on Friday with this final organising for the scope of works for a builder.

Hmmm, mmm.
And there’s a toss-up whether they were going to pay me out instead and ...
Hmmm, mmm.

The builder turned up on Friday and did some adjustments on the, cn the scope of works and submitted
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that on Friday and | was due in today to find out where things are up to but | don’t know who | need to
speak to.

Oh, okay. Let me just loold into it. Can you hoid one moment?
Yep, thank-you.

Se we ware walting on the siream amended scope of works ...
Yep.

And | doubt whether it's been on file as yet 'cos it was only 4 o'clock in the afternoon you speak to Rani so

Yes.

Sowhat lcandois ...

No, ge on,

Sorry?

—il's alright, 'm ialking over you.

Laughter, Whal | can do is put you through to Stream ...
Yep.

And they can advise when their scope of work will be ready.
Well, it might be better for me to falk io RACQ to see whether they, they, there was an option
whether they were going to pay me out or whether they were going to go ahead with this scope of
works.,

Alright.

Now this ...

P'li get the clalim owner on the phone ...

Alright.

Regarding the cash settlement.

Yep.

Can you hold a moment?

[ can. Thank-you.

Welceme to househeld claims, Maria speaking.

Hey, Maria. I's Dion, how you going?

(Good, how you going, Dion?

Oh well, you know looking forwaid to that Easier Break.
Hmmm, laughter.

Can | give you a claim number, please?

Yeah, go ahead.

And who do you have on the phone?

163




Maria

Maria

Maria.

[ have Ray Bryon.

No worries ...

He just wants to discuss a cash selllement. There's really iwo separate issues — the scope of
works which Rani has talked to him about and | said the updated scope of work won't be in
because Rant only spoke lo him al 4 o'clock on Friday.

Mmmm.

But he wants to taflk to you about a cash settlementi as well.

Okay. Put him through.

Thank-you.

LCB 10096653 4064932v2
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Time: 2.47pm
Date: 19 April 2011
Place of

interview:

Parties present: -itials)

Ray Byron {inifials)

Key: fUI] = unintelligible
[1A] = inaudible

= interrupted speech, or speech peters out

Ray: Hello Ray speaking.

Oh hi Ray, it's ere at RACQ Insurance, how are you going?

'm good, I'm the middie of digging out the remains of mud actually.

Y
o
-

Oh no...that doesn’t sound like a very good job.

ey
Y
~

No, it's not.

{ dow'i envy you at all, you poor thing.

Never mind, we'lt get there.

Yeah.

There's a lot of people worse ofi...

I know but siili.. .ii's nol a pleasant thing o have o go ihrough that's for sure.

Mo it's not.

I : I :D. 2 I
) A iy

Okay, so you gave us a call, | think it was yesterday...

]
[t}
-

Yep.

Going by the notes... this isn’t one of my claims and I'm jusl geing through il...it appears at this point...|
can see where...cbviously initially Stream hadn't scoped all of the work, there was some stuff missing from
their quote when they came out...

Ray: Yep.

So I'm just looking on their database as we haven't recelved anything through but | think what's happened
is # looks like there's some variations there that they've made and they're just waiting for those o be
apptoved ai their end, then I'd say the nexl step for them is then to report back lo MY| and then of course Lo
us in terms...you know with us.

Yep.

So from what | understand we're just trying 1o get the right figure here...is this how il appears...l mean
we're trying to get the right figure here because...do you have your own builder or are you...

Look, that was...because of all this toing and froing | have my own builder here who is a registered builder
and he's ready to go...

He's ready to yu...ckay.

s e .
. : Im
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Yeah and | was wondering if there is anyway was can do thal?

Yeah...umm...l guess i know...l think Mario my team leader spoke t¢ you tast week sometime when he
was...just going by his notes he wants to wait until we get | guess the updated scope of works from
Stream. . let me just go bacl to his note here and make sure I'm saying the right thing...Ummm...yeah he's
got a nole here saying you cerlainiy would prefer a cash setflement...so he’s jusl got here, once we've got
the amended scope, yeah we will obviously contaci and clarify our position regarding settlement so { don't
want to say yes thal we're going 1o go ahead and setlle you basad on that at this point...

Right...

t wani to 1aik to Mario, umm...but look d say...and that note was put on Stream'’s database that they are
awaiting that approval, that was vesterday so | can see that they are obviously on top of it umm...s0 I'd
expect something through pretly shodly from them. Umm...| guess. ..l don't know fong you can...| guess
the guestion is how long can you hold off for before we...

Well because of the situation, he’s a local fella and we've done diffarent things together at different times
and he said ook Il do it for you... he said to get things in order and we'll do it

Yeah.

When it's in order he'll do it.

Ready to go...okay. Look personally | don't see...we don't know if Stream once they you know...send us
this updated scope...we don't know then if they were going to do repairs how long they're going 1o take
before they can get around to it so that's not going 1o be helpful to you. If they say look we can't do this job
for another six months well of course we're not going to go down that road and we'd prefer (o you know...if
you've got semeone you can...you know...I'm already there why don't you go...

Yeah that's it...

That's why we would go down the road of cash settling yes.

There’s other things involved like my poor old mum Is 80 odd and she is still renting and can’t even get
back into her house so...

Oh gosh yeah...

And i looks like it will be writlens off so I'm trying lo gel imire ready so she can come there 1o ive. .

Yeab...

You know...

Yeah, | can only imagine. Yeah the stories {'ve heard is jusl...yeah guite unbelievabte.

il is. You know it's...we all appreciate everyone’s got a iot of their plate but il's...

When you've actuaily been through it though, you know | can | mears...l only ses whai | see from you
know...from hete t suppose and whal you see on TV but yeah, unless you've been throtgh it | certainly can
appreciate your you know situalion and everyene's...ummm...yeah the last thing we want to do is hold this

up for you umm...you know...

# that’s the way you're thinking that's good because you know...at least we're on the same track if you
know what | mean...

Oh yeah, as | said | understand everyone's predicament, the last thing...yeah | certainly don’t want {o hold
the worls up, | mean you've been wailing long enough as it is sc...it's just a shame that they hadn't done it
properly in the first place and we wolddn't have to go down this road. ..you know...

Yeah, that's sort of what's been burning me through this, because of the...you krow had you been ready ok
it might have been a different story but we've got ali this toing and froing and this bloke's ready and....

Exactly...exactly.
You know.
Yeah. Alright, I'll tock, I'l see if | can find anything for you...it's just that | can’t contacl Stream direct but |

can confact MYI to you know...see if we can give them a bit of a push along because | can see on there
that they're just waiting on approval in house in Stream before | imagine they send that amended scope
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through. Whether they send it direct to us or MY| that's what | need te find out, so al lgast | can do a fitle
bit of you know...whai | can this afternoon just to see if | can push it along a bit quicker...but that's where
we stand yeah.
I spoke to MY Freemans last week. ..

Hmm...and what did they say?

Well he's...all his side is in order and he suggesied that | get onlo you know Stream and see if | can get
things going because he knows what the situation is.

So did you ring Siream direct yourself did you?
Yeah, I've rung them...
Okay, right.

Yeah and | got onto umm...a lady at Stream and she was the one and on that particular day she thoughi
she was ready and she...] said well let’s go, lst's get this into gear and | paid the $309....

Oh ok yep. And ah...then when you've got it you've gone hang on. ..

Yeah.

Okay...it's all come undone. Aliight, we'll try and get it rectified as soon as we can then for you Ray so you
can move forward and get on with things, but yeah naturally | guess in a normal situation naturally we like
to use the huilders you know who are RAGQ approvead bt we certainly understand you know, if that's not
going to be something they can do in a shoit time frame their we understand...you khow as long as you've
got a...| guess tha only thing we could say is thal we couldn’l be responsible for any of the repairs then...
That's okay...

But 'm sure you're well aware of that so...

Yeah and he’s a focal...

Yeah he's good anyway...

And he knows all that's happened...

Yeah...everything will be good. Alright then. Alright Ray, leave it with me | will see what | can do for you this
afterncon um...! guess well as soon as | get it | will be in contact with vou chviously but if you want to give
us & ting after Easier and see how wa're travelling that's fine,

Okay...

Hopefully your'll hear from mme...yeah exacily.

Good on you.

Alright then | thanks Ray.

Thanks, bye.

Bve
LCB10096653 4065014vi
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Transcript of interview with Mr

Tine: 12.45pm
Date: 10 May 2011
Place of

interview:

Parties present: Rani Smith (RS)
Ray Byron (RB)

Key: ful] = unintefiigible
[|A} = inaudible

= interrupted speech, or speech peters out

RB Hello Ray speaking

RS Hi Mr Byron, this is Rani from RACQ Insurance, how are you today?

RB Fine thanks and you?

RS Sorry

RB Can you hear me?

RS Yep

RB Yep

RS How are you?

RB { think we are in a bit of bad spol

AS Oh ok

RB Can you hear me?

RS Yes that’s faniasiic. Ok now | am happy to advise | have all the guotes and everylhing back oday so | can
casgh settle you for your claim foday.

RB Yes

RS Have you got a pen and paper and i can give you the amounts that | have go on file?

RB Yes

RS Ol when vou're ready

RB Sure

RS Ok we've got the amount for fencing of $5,309.43.

R2 What's that for?

RS Fencing

RB Yep $5,300......

RS $5,309.43

RB Yep
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| have the building repairs. We've got $49.558.71.

Yep

The building, the additional building which is to your laundry is an extra $9,101.28,

Yep

Ok so we've got a total amount of $63,870.42

Yep

Less your pelicy excess of $300 which will be a cash setllement in the amount of $63,670.42
There's $300 that's already been paid

Sorry

There's $300 that's already been paid

Did you pay that lo Stream did you?

Yes it did yes. | did it on the internet. it must have been ior Stream. It was the Commonwealth Bank

Oh daar. Oh ok that sort of puts a bit of a spanner in the works, Ok so did you want it 1o be cash settled.
You didn't want to go through Stream

No on that particular day everything was apparently ready to go. Did you get the email | sent through
yesterday? .

Yes, ves but | was advised you ware wanting to be cash seftied.
Yes yes that's right
it that correct yeah

On that day when everything was ready for another company o doit. ....... The lady at Stream said was |
ready to pay the $300, which ! did.

That's usually only if you are going to go through them for repalrs.
Well at that point we were

Ok s¢ we have got o get that $300 back of Stream

Yes

Ok so what will happen is then Stream will have to send you a reimbursement cheque io yourself for the
$300.

Yes ok

And t will still have Lo take it off the final settlement unfortunately

That's right

But I'll get in contact with Stream in a moment and | will get them to do that for you straight away
Yep.

Now, did you want me to deposit it into your bank account or woild you like me to send you oul a cheque
payment?

Ummm...what's easiesi {or you?

If you've got your EFT details there | can take them from you now, otherwise. ..

Yep...yep no I've got them in my head. -is the BSB...
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Beautiful. And the accouni

Yep.

Yep...

Okay...and that's just Raymond Byron is it?
Yep
Okay, so I'll just repeat that back to you, ¥'ve got the BSB being-.'{APE ENDS

LB 10096653 4065 124vi
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Piace of
interview:

Parties present:

Transcript of interview between Rani and
Ray Byron

12.48pm

10 May 2011

Rani Smith (RS)
Ray Byron (RB}

Key: [UT} = unintelligible
[1A] = inaudible
= interrupted speech, or speech peters out
RS Host .. 1ost you.
RB { don't know whether it is the phones or the mobile antenna it seems to do it pretty regularly.
RS Oh, does it? OK, sorry. Um, | will just repeat the .. how the BSB was corvect.

RB -
RS Beautiful and the account is _

RB That's it, yes.

RS Beautiful. OK, weli { will make that payment for you today and you should receive that in your bank accounl
within the next three io four worldng days.

RB That'll he [ine.

RS Fantastic, awesome. And | will get In contact wilh: stream righl now and | witl get them to resubmit that $300

I>ack to you. OK

RB OK, thanks very much.

R& No worties at all. Thanks Mr Byron.
RB Thank you, hye.

RS Bye bye.

LCB100%66G53 40651411
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Transcript of interview with Lois and Ray

Time: 5.31pm
Bate: 30 May 2011
Place of
interview:
Parties present: Lois

Ray
Key: [Ul] = unintelligible

[1A] = inaudibie

= interrupied speech, or speech psters out

Ray: [recording ] This is Ray, please leave a message and | will return your call as soon as possible. Thank you.
Lois: Good afternoon my name is Lols and I'm calling on behalf of RACQ Insurance leaving a message please

for Mr Raymond Byron. | jusi wanted to let you know that | am looking into your particular claim and the
correspondence that you have senl through o our team leader, Mario. I myself am a team leader as well
for the household claims department. Mario is unavailable so I've been asked to do a review of this, What |
would like 1o do just as a courtesy is et you know that [ am looking into it further and am waiting on some
information to come through from the company called Stream and [ will get in touch with you on the next
business day tomorrow, 31 May to discuss this further. ¥ you've got any questions my name is Lots, spelt
.-o-i-s, for claim number | g2 Mr Byron a courtesy call to let you know that | am locking inte
this further for you and | will discuss it in greater detait when [ call you tomorrow. Thank you.

1.CB10096653 4065110v1
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Time:
Date:

Place of
interview:

Parties present:

Transcript of interview with Raymond
John Byron and Lois

4.55pm

21 May 2011

Raymend John Byron (RJB)

Key:

RJB:
Lois:
R.JB:
Lofs;
RJB:

Lois:

RJB:
Lois:
RJB:
Lois:
RJB;

Lois:

RJB:
Lois:
RJB:

[ois:

Lois Aftard (L) RACQ

[U] = uninteliigible
fIA] = inaudible

= interrupted speech, or speech pelers out

Hello Ray spealdng
Ah hello, my name fs Lois. Fm from BACQ Insurance, is that Mr Raymond Byton.
iLis, how ‘f you going. Look {'m in 'm just driving; I'll find a little spot o pull up

Yes, sorry | think ! did ¢afl you around about the same time yesterday as well, and missed your call.  think
you answered and then it got um

I just yeah, that's right. | answered and [ was in a bad spot and it jusi dropped out.

Thatl's okay and I did know that you've obviously been sending through some emails as well. | just thought
it might help to speak with you just over the telephone so | can send an email- if you would prefer but there
is a hit to cover and its always a bit easier if we can taik over the phene if that's okay.

That's fine yep,
Just let me know when you're free.
| about right now yep now that'll do.

Okay, se firstiy Pll introduce myselt. My name is Lois and I'm another team leader that's within RACQ
Insurance in the household claims' depariment,

Yep

So Mario s jusi not available this week so | jusl thought I'd have a look anyway for the information that's
come through and jusl have a look at the claim in Hself for what's um what's been discussed at the moment
and information that's come through from the company that was doing our assessing on our behalf which is
Stream Build Assist. So as | understand at this point, there was a payment just recently mada to you ah for
$63,670.42

That's right yvep
I'm not quite sure if you're In a posilicn with psn and paper there um budl
Mo, | haven't if you could email whatever | need to wrile if you could emall

Yeah, no that's okay. But what { did have a lool at, Initially | went back to the company called Stream Build
Assist and | asked them for their scopes because | think Mario madse reference o the quoting
was online so um in foday's world with computers and things like, they present a scope of works
which is so Stream I'm referring to, present a scope of work of what's required for the job and

then they tender thai out and as t understand a company called Mainz M A TN Z Developments
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RJB:

Lois:

RJB:

Lois:

RJB:

Lois:

Lois:
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Lois:
RJB:

Lois:

[

RdJB:
Lois:

RJB:

Lois:

RJB:
Lois;

RJB:

Lois:
RJB:
Lois:

RJB:

then provided their tender oniine

Yep

Back 1o Stream Build Assist, so there's no written guote as such um, so what happens is because this
claim has been given as a cash settlemeant, Stream’s database does not get uploaded as authorising
repairs so they don'l aclually get to keep the amount I've been Lold because when | look on their database,
we're got access to the Stream database and | couldn't find that information myself because why f've
needed to call Stream a few times today and just follow that up with ithem. So, that all said, what | have got
is um | understand what's heing provided to you in setilement already and that was breken down in that
letter. Would yout have that letter as yet from RACQ giving you the breakdown of the $63,0007?

No, all | have ever received was a remittance advice with a total amount and that's it. Date, total amount,
remitlance number and that’s the anly thing

Okay s0 you don't have that..

I've sver got from RACQ and Fve got a scope of works which was incorrect from Stream, and they are the
only two things I've ever got from anyone.

Okay, alright then, so the letter thai um and | can certatidy send you a copy of that again because 'm not
quite sure why you haven't got that it was dated 10" of May, its stili being maited to 1 Russell Street at Esk
is that correct?

Yes, yes.

Okay. 8o what

Yeah, thal one would have yeah the 10" of May would have been the one | got — that was just a it wasn't a
brealdown it was just a figure that's it — bang — and that's all | was told on the phone.

Ohhhh, okay, welt when you say figure, it does say buiiding repairs, laundry repairs, fences less excess
Ne, no.

You didn't get thal one

No, just ong figure.

Umrﬁm from RACG insurance?

Yep

Oh okay so have we gol a phone cal? or a letter do you

| got a phone call prior {o receiving the remittance. { got a phone call from a young lady who said thal |
can't’ remember who she said shie was; she said she was ringing up 1o advise me of my payoul; bave { got

a pen and write down these figures and that was it.

Okay, alright then, so the letler did indicate like what the building repairs were and then laundry repairs
and fences. My undarstanding from the total amount as we discussed earlier are $63,670.42. My
understanding is that you thought that some iflems were missing from that amount?

| have no idea what was included. The original scope of works

Okay

Was missing the total laundry area, the total front foyer area which is about three metres by two and a half
metres or something; a front access door assembily which is a door inside surrcunds type thing; what else?
A set of bi-folding dining room doors; I'm going off the top of my head now and there was on the scope of

works there was a front fence of 20 metres unshared, 20 metres al the back unshared and no mention of
and this has gone on right through the whole show. There’s no mention of two 80 melre side fences

Yep, yep
One is unshared and the other one is half shared.
Olkay, okay

Pardon me.
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And that's whal, that parl of what I've been following up with Siream foday on thal so what I've got here and
| understand [ can do it in an emall cause you don't have pen and paper with you now, um so what they've
coniirmed to me is the actual mains development the company their price for building repairs was, these
are all going just be figures o you i understand ‘cause you're in the car - $49,944.31

Yep

Then for the aciuat...sorry there's a lot of paperwork, I'm just making sure ! get this right as | speak to you
the aciual laundry repairs then were $3,054.74

Yep
The actual front entry that you just made reference 1o was $3,435.96
Yep

Um there’s fencing now the fencing 1 know was | think what you just said about there was no mention of the
80 lineal metres for left and right — I've got side fencing for a total of $5,863.83 and they have indicated 10
me thal 20 lineal meires for the front and rear that you said were non-shared

Yes

They were actually in part of that scope for $48,944,31 that first figure; so just putting those four figures
logether, and | do apologise because the issue here is thal Stream have on thelr initial assassments, nol
scoped things and not prepared their payment recommendations to us accurately and that sort of really
made it a bit um all confusing.

| know and lock the whoie history of whatever has happenad bsiween me and anyone te do with this claim
is all involved in those emails cause thal's all thal's ever happened.

Ckay

When Stream sent me that scope of works, | rang her and told her what things were missing and she
asked me to sign...everything was go, we wanl to get things going straight away. She asked me to sigh the
Stream... agree to the scope of works and she would Include the others as a part of a revised scope of
works or something.

Okay yep.

And thal was the lasl | ever heard.

Ckay alright. And so, um becauss, lrom that information and the figures that Pve just been able to asceriain
from them loday and that doss include the areas that you noted were missing from that initial assessment,

s0 that was including the laundry and the front entry and some side fences, that figue is actuatly now
$62,298.84

Yep

Now | know you're not writing any of this down, but what that actually represents is thal takes care of all the
iterms thal even you identified as missing In the first instance. Now what their initial advices o us and the
payment that’s gene out is actually higher - $63,670.42

Yep

So, so you aciually received more really than what the scope was you know when they did it accurately 1o
allow

Yep

Of course, given all the you know the mucking around in between you know Stream not preparing their
scopes actually and providing that information, I'm not locking to seek any money from you or anything like

that, but | jusi wanl to assure you that the payment you have received is completion of all of the items to be
claimed, the scope of works

Okay, well ook, 'm hayond all this o be honast; I've had a gut full of the whole things and | don’t, I'm not
throwing everything al you

Ne, no | undersiand
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I's just gone on for so long; there's been a lot of things Involved, a lot of pressure, there's & lot of you know
| can't even imagine yeah what the last few months have been like for you. |
Go on

¢ did alsc want to highlight

The reason, the reason | the email | got back from Mario was just the end of it. I'd had a gut full from there
on. Now whatever, whatever the value turns out | don't care less. | just , | just my whole complaint is this
bloody system. U's jusl wrong and | mean 1 look across the road and the people over thers, they're under
the same problems, ah there are six houses thers with RACQ and they are only little one and two bedsoom
cabins in the caravan park and they're scope and return and quote for their works is $80,000 $20,000

Umm

And that's concerns me but | just

fcan't

But ! just haven't got fime to worry about #

No, and look | can't honestly male any comment there because | don't know of those particular claims to
look inte and

And that's what | asked Mario to loolk into it
Well, it's against our privacy to sort of share any of that information with you.

And you don't have to share it, you just look at it and you say well okay we've got a three bedroom house
here with you know quite a bit of actual concreting got to be dug up and 80 metres of fencing um, you know
when you add all that up it's a hell of a bigger volume of work than what these others are and yet they're
getting thelr quotes are higher money — there’s something wrong, it just dogsn't fit.

Yeah, | mean, | can’t sort of comment on that but

That's okay.

What { did wanl to say, cause | do realise that there were other things that you did mention in the email 1o
Mario particularly in respect to you warnted a copy of your original certificate of insurance which was lost
and also you wanted cenfirmation of like the direct debits thai are continving to come out of your account

What | wanled to know was, was is the insurance policy stilf current, stilf stand for what it stood before even
though the house has been under disrepair since January

So what | wanted to say in response to that is | called the underwriting department because the
underwriting department are the people thai look afier the policy and are respansibla for the renewals when
they're due and get posted out so mmdentallyl they're actually your policies in like almost like a renewal
stalus al lhe momant cause its due on the 16" of July.

Yes

So the lady | spoke fo the!e she's already orgamsed a certificale of insurance to show for your first period
of cover which s that 18" July 2010 10 168" July 2011 was that fisst you know from paticy inception and also
hecause of the dates, obviously that was heading into June tomorrow and its due for renewal, that will
process is happening anyway so you're policy is falling into renewal and so a renewal natice will also be
sent out to you and she informed me that the amounts of direct debits are noted on there so | just wanted
to let you know thal those two separate um documents wilt be coming out in the mail to you shortly.

Oh that's good.

Yep okay so um what I'd ke to do um is I'll just send you | mean you clearly dori'i have the first letier that
was sent but what 'd like 1o do is send a iresh lsiter basad on our discussions loday and the figures that |
have mentioned to you albeit verbally because you haven't had an opportunity 1o write that down and um
and then just finailse by saying that that settlement there is in full and final settlement of the clatm and
where possible, I'll try and get some extracts of this online guoting from Stream and have that in the same
envelope for you with that settlement letter would that be okay?

That would be good — that would be good vep
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Excellenl. Is there anything else that | can answer {or you | mean | haven'l been involved in this right from
the beginning — | do apologise that it has been you know not the smoothest process, and | guess thal doss
happen from time to time, but I've just spent quite a lot of time cn this today really irying to find out the
issues with respect to that and there have been a couple of multiple things there with Stream not getling
their initial assessment correct and then their report to us with incorrect pricing and that sori of thing so look
| can only apologise on behalf of RACG for that mess up but ' gel a lefier to you a settlement letter in the
mail based on the figures thal we have discussed today, together with that online quoting thai you can sae
for those figures and then separaiely the underwriting depariment are sending off a certificate of
insurances for you for the first insurance period which is due to end on 16" July and then your renewal as
well.

Alright.

And just um sorry answering what vou said, at this stage, yes your poticy is covered for that same coverage
whicl is the building sum insured equal to 255- 1 think with CPl increases every year | think it goes it, | think
that may have been a bit lower last time was i

.. yeah well.

236 yesh 237 last year and now its 255 sum insured with this next renewal just happening and
obviously the cover is the same that its covered for every insured event that’s listed under thal
product disclosure statement which is that booklet itemising the terms and conditions.

Okay and is water runs in the gate like we did before we get the same
Sorry, L didn't hear that part

{Laughter) I'm just being sarcastic | said if the water runs in the gate again like i did last time we gel lo go
through the same process?

Waell, | can tell you that floed is hot covered by the RACQ Insurance policy so yeah, they do cover flash
flood, but flood in itseif is nol covered by the poficy, it is something that is an optional cover um and then

you have to talk to the peopie who within RACQ to ask about that cover and they advise you know
acceptable or noi given the siatistics of what they've got from recent findings, that's right.

That's right. Yeah, alright

Olay, well | do appreciate your time, | won't keep you any lenger, but | will just reiterate that | will get this
letter out to you...um setllement letler just based on today’s figures and then the online quote just to
suppert those figures okay?

Okay thank you | appreciaie vour help.

And | appreciate your time today, Thanks so much,

Right oh thank you bye.

Bye.
LCB 10096652 4065135v1
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